DOCUMENT RESUME

JC 840 030 ED 238 499

Platform for Excellence: A Review and Projection of TITLE

Basic Skills, Developmental and Learning Support Education. Task Force Reports from the Learning

Assistance Support System Project.

Washington State Board for Community Coll. Education, INSTITUTION

Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education SPONS AGENCY

(ED), Washington, DC.

PUB DATE Apr 83

NOTE 52p.

PUB TYPE Reports - Descriptive (141) -- Viewpoints (120) --

Guides - Non-Classroom Use (055)

EDRS PRICE MF01/PC03 Plus Postage.

*Basic Skills; *Developmental Studies Programs; DESCRIPTORS

*Educational Policy; *Educational Testing; *Foreign Students; Immigrants; Minimum Competencies;

Postsecondary Education; *Program Administration; Refugees; Remedial Instruction; Statewide Planning;

Student Placement; Student Problems; Testing

Programs

IDENTIFIERS *Washington

ABSTRACT

Prepared by four state-appointed task forces, this report recommends policies and procedures for basic skills education in the State of Washington to assist local and statewide planning. Following introductory material on the mandate and members of the task forces, Section I considers the organization and management of developmental programs, focusing on philosophy, management models, funding, services, and staff considerations. Section II identifies current testing instruments used in the areas of college entry, writing, reading, math, English as a Second Language, and vocational screening. In addition, this section summarizes comments on the effectiveness of the various tests that were gathered during a statewide survey. Section III discusses the status of immigrant and refugee education, reviewing the extent of the impact of immigrant and refugee students; the process of surveying faculty regarding these students; faculty perceptions of problems, solutions, and unmet needs; and a program model and recommendations for immigrant and refugee education. Section IV presents eight public policy recommendations designed to provide directions and objectives for the 1980's. A list of academic competencies, as defined by the College Board, is appended. (LAL)



Reproductions supplied by EDRS are the best that can be made

from the original document. ****************

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION COUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION

CENTER IERICI
This document has been reproduced a received from the person or organization

onginating it

Jes have been made to impro-

position of noisey

Platform for Excellence

A Review and Projection of Basic Skills, Developmental and Learning Support Education

Task Force Reports From
The Learning Assistance Support System Project

Washington State Community Colleges

Grant Project through the Fund for the Improvement of Post Secondary Education Sponsored by the State Board for Community College Education

April 1983



Background

The Learning Assistance Support System, a grant project through the Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education sponsored by the State Board for Community College Education, sought to review and clarify Washington Community College programs in basic skill education.

Throughfour task force committees, local and systemwide activities were studied Besides reviewing current operations the committees were charged with collecting instructional resources for dissemination between colleges and determining policy recommendations that would assist local and statewide planning.

The report that follows is the accumulated account of the task force process.

Alan Torgerson Project Director



The Task Force Process

For several years local and state directors for basic skills and develomental education services in Wash ingion community colleges discussed the need for a State Board for Community College Education supported project. In 1981 a Learning Assistance Support System (LASS) grant was awarded by the Fund for the improvement of Posisecondary Education. The objective was to provide immediate assistance to faculty members and administrators as well as review projected needs in adult basic skills for the 1980s. The former mandate initiated network and communical tions activities, initiated staff development programs and established a resources collection and disemination system. The latter mandated a projective study through formation of four task forces. The areas for study were organization and management, assess ment, impact of immigrant and refugee students in mainstream education, and public policy.

These task force committees were asked to collect, study and recommend policies and procedures for basic skills education that would assist local and state-wide planning during the 1980s. The committees met numerous times in order to determine parameters, define goals, design and evaluate surveys and write draft reports. Each task force worked independently with the exception of the public policy group. They reviewed the early conclusions from the several reports.

Formation of each task force was through invitation. Besides faculty and administrators from basic skills and developmental programs, deans of instruction, student services administrators, former students and college presidents were committee members. Chair persons were selected because of their leadership in specific areas. Jim Bennett from Belieue Community College as chair of the organization and management

task force, initiated one of the first comprehensive basic skills/developmental programs in the state's community college system. He currently is a doctoral candidate in higher education administration Dr. Ellen Smith is an expert In reading assessment and reading programs. She designed the reading lab at Highline Community College and is currently developing curricula at Ft. Stellacoom Community College Because of her recent doctoral program, she has knowledge and expertise in testing programs. Julia Gage established the Vocational English As a Se cond Language Program (VESL) at Edmonds Community College. She is currently employed at Tacoma Community House in a volunteer refugee training project which assists volunteers statewide. During the fall of 1982 she was a consultant to South East Asian refugee camps under the U.S. State Department, Judy Pilder is the Grector of District 17 (Spokane) adult learning program. The Bancroft Center. She is a past public school board member with knowledge on policy and political processes.

The task forces were given a mandate to produce a document that would formalize recommendations for basic skills education and assist local as well as statewide planning

The original title for the document was "A Framework for Excellence," As meetings and discussions progressed it became evident that the "framework" will be in a continuous altering state during this transforming period. Thus the title has emerged as "A Platform for Excellence." knowing that for basic skills education in the community college system, the information collected and policies recommended will lead to review, revisions and reconceptualizations



Task Force Membership

Organization and Management:

Chairperson Members:

Jrm Bennett Rachel Hidaka Pam Arsenault Ken Hildebrant Greg Golden Bellevue Community College Seattle Central Community College Highline Community College Fort Stellacoom Community College Edmonds Community College

Assessment

Chairperson[®]

Ellen Smith

Highline Community College Fort Steilacoom Community College Fort Steilacoom Community College

Fort Steilacoom Community College

Members:

Steve Wall Frank Edge

Centralia College

George Dennis Ken White Lower Columbia College Everett Community College Tacoma Community College

Virginia Liebergesell Kathy Keenan Don Hughes

Olympic College Yakima Valley College

Mildred Ollec Tonia Clark Seattle Central Community College North Seattle Community College

Immigrant and Refugee ESL:

Chairperson Members:

Julia Gage
Joyce Kruithof
Sandra Cross
Ruth Paige
Betty Welch
Duong Dunning
Jack McGee
Chau Nguyen
Ernle Cadman

Tacoma Community House
Edmonds Community College
Everett Community College
North Seattle Community College
North Seattle Community College
Seattle Central Community College
Edmonds Community College

Community Member Lower Columbia College

Public Policy:

Chairperson Members

Jurly Pilder
Hikla Thompson
Bill Agopsowlcz
Cary Heth
Phyllis Everest
Barb Bennett
Lynn West
Dick Petersen
Jeff Wagnitz
Elden Dietrich

Spokane District #17 Pancroft Center Walla Walla Community College Spokane Falls Community College Spokane Falls Community College

Spokane District #17

Spokane Falls Community College Spokane Community College Spokane Community College Wenatchee Valley College Big Bend Community College Walla Walla Cortmunity College

Consultant LASS Project

Chair Protem.

Alan Torgerson

Acknowledgements

The production of this document would not have occurred without the assistance of a number of other persons in addition to the aforementioned. Critical review and clarifying recommendations of the draft copy by Dr. Susan Quattrociocchi, Everett Community College, Dr. Patsy Cullaghan, Penninsula Community College, and Dr. Gil Carbone, State Board for Community College Education, were greatly appreciated. Kay Brandt and Lucy Sappenfield. Highline Community College, spent hours developing the format and typeselting material for final publication. Ying Stategr and Dick Gordon, also at Highline Community College, guided the design and appearance of the document

The quality, organization, content, design and printing of this document are the result of efforts by talented professionals within the community college system in Washington state



Table of Contents

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Section I	Organization and Management	1
	Philosophy and Purpose	2
	What Makes a Sound Basic Skills Education Program?	3
	Commitment and Funding	
	Continuing in the Control of the Con	3
	Student-Faculty Ratios	3
	Services	4
	Staffing and Faculty Selection and Training	4
	Advisory Committee	5
	Administrative Management Models	5
		_
Section li	Assessment In Developmental Education Programs	6
	Introduction	7
	College Entrance Placement Tests	8
	Writing and English Tests	10
	Reading Tests	
	Mathematics	
	ESL (English as a Second Language) Tests.	
	Vocational Assessment Measures	
	"Special Area" Assessments	
	Conclusions	27
	Recommendations	27
	Data Collection Schedule	28
Section III	Immigrant and Refugee Education	
	Extent of the Impact	30
	Process	
	Review of Survey Responses	iO
	Survey Area I (Problems Prior to Entrance)	
	Survey Area II (Problems While Enrolled)	5.2
	Survey Area III (Problems After Completion)	
	Program Model	3:3
	Recommendations	}. ‡
Section IV	Public Policy Recommendations	35
	Public Policy for Basic Skills Education	36
	Conclusion	
	Contraction of the contraction o	,,
Appendix	Academic Competencies	38
• •		
	Academic Competencies as Defined by the College Board	3()



Section I

Organization and Management



Section I

Organization and Management

Organization and management of developmental programs have been the concern of over half of the community colleges in the state. New reporting structures, new areas of responsibility, altered philosophy statements and a reduced budget have forced many thoughts about form and style of operations.

This section reviews philosophy, management models, funding, services and staff considerations, it also presents "What Makes a Sound Developmental Model".



Philosophy and Purpose

Medsker and Tillery in their book Breaking the Access Barriers: A Profile of Two Year Colleges said "As barriers to educational opportunities are eliminated, students in need of help will flood the community callege and greatly exacerbate the present problems of providing developmental and remedial training" This has occurred!

One of the primary results of the open door concept of admissions in the Washington community colleges has been the growing number of students who do not or just barely fulfill traditional entrance requirements. There are, in fact, estimates which suggest that between 35 and 50 percent of community college students need basic skills required for college level education. No current evidence suggests that this trend will soon change.

Philosophically it would appear that as educators we must be guided by the concept that equal access and equal opportunity to learn are more than tangentially related. Thus the premise underlying successful or ganizing and managing of basic skills and developmental education programs is concerned with both the promotion and provision of greater educational opportunity and quality rather than just getting more students into college.

A strong case may be made for claiming as traudulent those systems that admit these students and then either fail, pass or frustrate them into withdrawal without seriously assisting them in identifying and meeting their learning needs

On the other har ' we are aware that most community colleges in this state have fairly similar missions and that all have similar goals. Yet when the organizational structure of our various insulutions is examined, tremendous variation becomes apparent.

From Seattle Central to Walfa Walfa our community colleges have initiated and implemented developmental/remedial courses and programs for the academically disadvantaged. We are all aware, however, and must continually be mindful that simply offening courses and programs will not necessarily solve the problem. The institution which really welcomes these students must clearly define its purpose to serve this population.

Morphet, teffer and tudke indicate that a clear definition of purpose is basic to educational programs and planning. An organization will find it difficult to accomplish a purpose unless its policies and philosophy support that purpose if causing learning to occur in the developmental student admitted through the open door has become one of the primary goals of an institution, then the policies, procedures and philosophy of than institution must be congruent.

Subscribing to this line of thought two and a half years ago, when Bellevue Community College was analyzing and reorganizing its developmental education

opportunities, services and instruction, the first task was to define for itself the general term "developmental education". The committee charged with the responsibility of accomplishing this task adopted the following definition. "A systematic process of instruction and services designed to bring stadents to their fallest potential, included in the process are assessment, counseling, coursework and other support services."

This working definition was later clarified to include a listing of populations of students who were academically defidient or disadvantaged but potentially capable of learning skills or concepts taught in college programs

The Learning Assistance Support System Project has adopted the following as a definition. Developmental education is a learning assistance support system for adult learners that gives attention to the fullest possible improvement of ability through the acquisition, development, remediation, maintenance and review of personal learning skills.

A further clarification of developmental education defines three areas

- The achievement of basic competencies in reading, writing, listening and speaking for ESL students, and mathematics
- 2 The preparation for entry into academic or vocational programs. These include raising basic educational skills in reading, writing, mathematics and study skills which meet prerequisite needs that will insure successful performance from the beginning to the end of training.
- 3 The assistance with continuing basic skills and learning needs through tutoring and other services which support formal academic or vocational programs

In order for institutional and public understanding of community colleges the Task Force on Organization and Management sees a need for instituting a public relations campaign. The process of sharing information cannot be overemphasized. No motter how representative an institutional policy roaking committee timely and relevant information regarding change in policy, enhancement of educational philosophy and shifts in emphasis and resource utilization must be provided.

It is also of great importance to share on an institutional liasis the evaluative results of any developmental program efforts. This is especially important during these days of severely dwindling resources. To be open for scrutiny, criticism, and concern is as important as any accolades that might be directed toward developmental offerings. Programs, if they are to be funded, should validate the serving or learning needs, only for developmental students according to program definition and purpose, but also for those staff and faculty who are a part of the students' lives.



if, in fact, the community college is a response to the need to provide the common man with an education which would otherwise be denied, then this state's basic skills and developmental education programs and opportunities must be an integral part of this concept and need.

What Makes a Sound Basic Skilis Education Program?

Philosophy

 An explicitly stated developmental education philosophy leading to policy positions for public understanding.

Administration

2 Understanding, commitment and support from the chief executive officer of the college.

Horizontal accessibility of all academic and vocational programs by the designated developmental education manager/coordinator/director.

4. Responsibility for Adult Basic Education (ABE), General Equivalency Degree (GED). English as a Second Language (ESL), high school completion. Intering and other basic skills assistance for preentry or instructional support by the developmental education manager/coordinator/director

Funding

5 A student/faculty ratio of no more than 25 t

Categorical funding for the developmental education program.

Assessment

7 A college entrance assessment system with specific basic skills diagnostic testing which screens students needing further basic skills education.

Instruction

8 A clear and explicit student attendance policy

9 Flexible self-paced learning opportunities that are based on mastery of learning concepts

to A plan for implementation of computer managed / computer assisted and computer recordkeeping systems.

11 A centralized location for basic skills, developmental and learning support services whenever possible.

Faculty

 A basic skills instructional faculty, who have diver sified backgrounds.

13. An active staff development plan which includes the involvement of all academic and vocationlifa Culty relative to learning skills needs and teaching strategies for nontractitional students.

Support System

14 Direct and referral counselor assistance in assessment, crisis intervention, college/community resources and nexistep educational or employment planning which recognizes both the cognitive and affective needs of students

is initiation of a college developmental education /learning support Advisory Council that encour ages program eviluation, policy and goal directions, and the college's responsibility relative to meeting learning needs of developmental students.

Commitment and Funding

The dependence of American socicty on its community colleges is clearest in the college's hasic skills function. Legislators and other public members who hold the purse strings in our nation are understandably tired of paying several times over for the teaching of reading, writing and computational skills. This knowledge should be acquired at the elementary and high school levels. Nevertheless, there remain multitudes of people who reach adulthood without learning basic literacy and computational skills during their primary and secondary years. Society has two options it can continue to assist the nonliterate in skill development of the can toss them into the trash heap. Community colleges are institutions of last resort for many individuals and the services must be maintained.

support must also be expressed for a glose relation ship with high schools. Establishment of proficiency exams prior to graduation will begin to solve problems for our younger crizens, however, there retnains a great backlog of adults who must improve their skill deficiencies. These individuals will need educational basic skills assistance through the 1980s

The state of Louislana recently spent two years study ing their needs in remedial education. They discover ed that funds generated by developmental programs were not being reinvested back into the programs. Real institutional commitment to developmental education was not occurring. State support and institutional commitment are clearest when enrollment revenues are reinvested into basic skills programs established by soft money funding sources.

The Louisiana Task Force recommended that funding formula for developmental education be consistent with lower division undergraduate student support and that funds generated be spent on the program which produced the revenue

The point to emphasize is that basic skills, develop mental and learning assistance education be a top priority funding item. There must be local financial support institutions simply cannot skim the funds generated by these programs for other areas. Solid in vestment will yield increased retention and increase student enrollment for succeeding quarter.

Student-Faculty Ratios

Small class sizes contribute to a supportive learning environment, an essential component of any basic skills education program. Therefore, it is recommended that developmental education courses in English, reading, mathematics and study skills be limited to 25 students per class. Each class should be individualized using the systems mode of instruction with one instructor and one paraprofessional aide. Tutors and volunteers may also be used to help meet the individual needs of students. In all cases it is absolutely essential that the objectives of the course be clearly understood by the student. A course syllabus provides required structure.



Services

The services provided by a developmental program should include basic skills courses in writing, reading, speaking, listening, mathematics and study skills. In addition, the support components of an accessible tutorial program and counseling center is required to provide comprehensiveness for students entering the Washington community college system with skills inadequate to succeed in an academic or vocational program.

Although developmental programs will vary from institution to institution, the primary concerns of each must be that it meets the basic skills needs of the population and that it be well coordinated with the institutional divisions which it supports

Objectives

The objectives of such a program are-

- 1 To provide a comprehensive, structured program to strengthen all basic skills necessary to succeed in college
- 2 To provide skills courses which maximize aca demic and vocational success through small group instruction and individualized assistance
- 3 To include the support services of counseling, turor ing and advising

Placement of Students

A comprehensive, campus wide entrance placement testing program is the primary tool for directing students to a skills program. Such an initial assessment should include an evaluation of students' English, reading and mathematics abilities. In addition, counselors and faculty should clearly communicate the necessity of courses so that underprepared students are directed to these classes.

The Program

English Instruction - English skills courses should emphasize writing proficiency. Placement of students in the developmental English skills class should be based upon the institution's placement tool. Satisfactory completion should be required for the student to progress to college level English courses.

Mathematics Instruction—Developmental mathematic, a course emphasizing basic mathematics concepts, should be hased on the institution's placement tool and required of students who plan to enter a program which contains mathematics or science in its required curriculum. Satisfactory completion of developmental mathematics should be required for the student to advance to college level mathematics courses.

Academic Study Skills Instruction—This basic skills course is designed to help students develop the necessary study skills to succeed in college. This category shoul falso include college orientation, career information, values clarification and an emphasis on goal setting and decision making.

Reading Instruction—Developmental reading should be required of all students who are enrolled in developmental English or who fail to achieve a level of reading proficiency deemed appropriate on an acceptable reading assessment tool

Academic Competencies—Basic competency at tainment should be the "raison de entre" of all basic skills coursework The competencies to which an alle giance is subscribed is presented in the Appendix (page 37)

Advising and Counseling—Each student should be assigned an academic advisory and should be required to plan her/his academic program in conjunction with this advisor. In addition, each student should have access to a counseling center staffed to provide individual or group counseling.

Counselors may aid students by reviewing goals. *Commitments or attitudes while encouraging students to make their own decisions.

Tutorial Services—A tutorial program provides assistance for the students enrolled in the developmental studies courses but also becomes a supplement for students in any class through individual or small group assistance. Tutorial programs may employ student or peer tutors, qualified volunteer tutors, or 'professional' tutors. The tutoring coordinator should be responsible to each academic department to see that faculty take an active role in selection and supervision of tutors. Tutor training, be it formal or informal, should be the responsibility of the tutorial coordinator.

Students—When students are placed in one or more of the skills classes according to the entrance assessment, it is recommended that regular college level coursework be delayed and a relevaluation of skills be made before enrollment in regular college classes

Student involvement is essential to basic skills and developmental education. Instructors should follow up on student absences to encourage students to return to class. Although laboratory courses may be open entry/open exit, it is emphasized that structure is still critical. Mandatory attendance in laboratory courses is recommended.

The grading system used for developmental courses should be consistent with the grading policy of the institution. Student evaluations should be requested so that programming and instruction can evolve to meet changing student needs. Because students transfer to other institutions, it is also recommended that institutions develop a uniform system for recognizing the completion of extremental

Staff and Faculty Selection and Training

Staff and Laculty selection and training is critical to the success of any basic skills education program. For effective programs only instructors and support staff who are committed to this area of education should be allowed to teach and assist in the program. Each in stitution, should, select, instructional, staff, based, on their own philosophy of basic skills and developmental education.



Selection criteria for all program directors, instructors, aides, tutors and clerks should be clearly established Paraprofessional aides should be compensated according to the state civil service classifications. For most developmental programs paid teaching aides should be classed as instructional technicians. Tutors should also be adequately compensated through either salaries or academic credit.

Since many coilege teachers lack professional training and experience in developmental education, ongoing training for faculty is very important. The training program should be well planned and should utilize, whenever possible, institutional and state wide resources.

A well developed staff/faculty training program should include:

- strong administrative support for well trained developmental education faculty and staff.
- Activities and practices that are consistent with the institution's philosophy of basic skills education.
- A director or coordinator who works with an advisory group to provide leadership.
- 4. A wide variety of activities:
 - A. Orientation sessions for the Institution's entire faculty in order to inform the mand capture their interest.
 - B workshops held regularly for faculty, aides and lutors who work with developmental students.
 - C. Team visits to other institutions to review exemplary programs.
 - D. Grants for staff to develop special projects
 - E Travel to meetings, conferences and conventions.
 - F. A professional development plan for each staff and faculty member.
- 5 Appropriate incentives and rewards.
- 6 Adequate funding.
- Involvement with the institution's overall program evaluation.
- Evaluation of training as part of overall program evaluation.

A developmental program should be administered by a director who will manage and supervise the operation as well as coordinate the various components and who reports to the academic dean. Additionally a lead instructor/coordinator for each academic area (reading, writing, math) should report to the appropriate college division

Finally, the State Board for Community Colleges should provide a State Coordinator to assist colleges and faculty in their staff development needs.

Advisory Committee

A basic skills, developmental and learning assistance education advisory committee from the academic and vocational divisions as well as student support services should be established on each campus. This committee should review campus policies, procedures and impacts on these educational programs. The committee is responsible for encouraging the whole college to recognize that this educational service is the "hybrid* of the college in that it functions as an academic and student service-oriented unit. It is a vit ' link to all programs

Administrative/Management Models

Similar to the realization that there is no one most ap prepriate teaching methodology or learning style is the reality that there is no one most appropriate way to organize and manage a developmental education program. Appropriateness is at best situational and at a minimum circumstantial. In reviewing a number of programs throughout the state this task force was impressed with the variety of models and manage ment/organization systems serving as the basis for these models.

Every institution is different, utilizing a variety of methods to accomplish its goals. There are different administrative structures and decision-making apparati, varying levels of commitment to different learning issues, differences in program mix, and, most importantly, differences in addressing the concept of serving developmental students.

After considerable brainstorming and discussion the Task Force on Organization and Management feels that in spite of the aforementioned differences, there are a number of concepts that underlie What we would consider successful programs. On page 3 What Makes a Sound Developmental Education Program? lists 15 items. These ideas should be considered whether the basic skills program is itself a clivision, a program in a single division, or a program that operates interdisciplinarily across two or more divisions.

It is our firm belief that no successful program can exist without a serious consideration of a majority of the reviewed concepts in this section. These are the prerequisites that undergird any basic skills and developmental learning assistance organizational heme. Organizational plans are important and are simply ways in which these concepts can fit into the reallities of our various institutional reporting relationships.

References

"Academic Competencies as Defined in New Project of College Board". The Chronicle of Higher Education, September 30, 1981

Medsker, 1., & Tillery, D. Breaking the Access Barriers: A Profile of Two-Year College's New York McGraw; Hill, 1971.

Morphet, E.L., Jesser, D. & Ludke, A.P., Planning and Providing for Excellence in Education New York: Citation Press, 1972



Section II

Assessment In Developmental Education Programs



Section II

Assessment In Developmental Education Programs

Assessment and diagnostic activities exist on every community college campus. This section identifies current testing instruments in the areas of college entry, writing, reading, math. ESL and vocational screening. Comments on the effectiveness of the various tests were solicited through a survey with the results being included in the paper.

Conclusions and recommendations focus on the need for coordination, resources, policy and evaluation.



Introduction

to these days of accountability, assessment plays an important role in new students' education. It is commonplace for the Washington community colleges to use assessment measures for placing students into various levels of writing and computational classes. Diagnostic measures are used to further identify specific deficiencies in reading, writing and niathematics students benefit because their class selections approximate their level of capability. This promotes a learning environment and strategy which enhances the potential for success.

This review of assessment and diagnostic measures in the community college system exposes the interest, variety and concern held by administrators and faculty Every college has designated assessment in struments for determining both class placement levels and educational deficiencies.

Data for reviewing assessment was obtained through survey. Areas reviewed included college entry, reading, writing, mathematics, ESL, several vocational programs and an "other" eategory which focused on study skills, spelling, vocabulary and readiness to take GED tests.

In each area an analysis of responses is presented. It should be noted that some measures are listed in more than one section because one college may use the testing instrument for entrance while another may use it for specific diagnosis.

Last of all, the information in the descriptive charts is hased only on those responses from the survey form. The cross reference matrix contains a more comprehensive listing of tests. Discrepancy exists because some colleges did not respond to the initial survey sent in November, 1982. The survey developed the more complete descriptive charts with the comments relating to the purpose of the test, who the test is for and its effectiveness.

Limitations

Even though the Task Force on Assessmen, at tempted to obtain comprehensive information, the data is limited to those colleges that participated and limited by the amount of information provided by each college. Some community colleges responded with detailed information while others provided only sketchy reviews. Some departments or divisions within a college provided more information than others. Therefore, the conclusions and recommendations will be limited to a review of the information obtained.

This section is also limited by its intent. Because the survey sought information only on entry, diagnostic and vocational assessment resources, several import ant assessment areas will not be mentioned. Person ality inventories as well as assessment of learning styles life skills and careers are not included. Testing for waivers and course credit equivalencies are not

addressed. Although ESL. ABE, GED and high school completion tests are mentioned by some colleges, this report does not give an accurate review of testing done in these areas. Moreover, information is not provided on academic or classroom testing procedures used in Washington community colleges.

Finally information on comprehensive and complete assessment strategies is not available. The question was asked but this vital information did not surface through the information collection technique.



16

College Entrance Placement Tests

Seventeen community colleges indicated that general entry placement tests are used to assess student academic skills. Ten colleges reported two or more tests are evaluated for placing individuals in English, mathematics and reading courses.

A listing of tests include

Entry Test Washington Pre College Test	Community Colleges 14
Comparative Guidance and Placement Test	ទ
Self-Assessment Instruments	6
Scholastic Aptitude Test	6
American College Test	6
General Apillude Test Battery	2
Clark College Placemeni	1

Nine colleges provide statements of test effective ness. Their statements range from very effective to questionable. However, the tests generally appear to be meeting the intended purposes.

Review of Entry Placement Tests

College	Test	Purpose and/or Population	Effectiveness			
Bellevue	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Assess all new students entering reading lab	OK for gross placement Often gives unrealistic "parallel" scores in reading and comprehension			
Centralia	Washington Pre College	Placement of new students in English math, reading	An Indicator of success Effective for placement			
	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Placement of new students in English. math, reading	Good to son out those who need developmental courses			
	Scholastic Aptitude Test	Placement of new students in English, math, reading	Good to son out those who need developmental courses			
	American College Test	Placement of new students in reading and writing	Good to sort out those who' need develomental courses			
Ft Stellacoom	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Assesses new students for reading and writing	Questionable			
Olympia Technical	Comparative Guidance and Placement	All new students for placement in math	Very effective			
Skagu Valley	' onunumity College Assessment Program	Placement of all AA, Electronics, norsing, office occupations, civil tech, and human services students in math. English and reading	Too casts to 10%			
Spokane Community	General Apritude Test Battery	Given to posi-high students	Good for some Others (for t follow suggestions Progbably will stop using test as It is becoming more bureaucrauc Looking for something else			
Tacoma	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Placement in English Given to as many students as possible who register	Works well at conjuncation with reading scores on Nelson Denny Test			
	Washington Pre College	Placement in English Given to as many students as possible who register	Works well in conjuncation with reading scores on Nelson Denny Test			
	Self Assessment Measurement	****				
walla Walla	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Placement of vocational stadents	Oives sonti diagnostic infor- mation on comprehension skills			
Yakima Vəiles	Community College Assessment Program	Given to all entering students without Washington Fre College scores	Is a new program and its effectiveness will be determined at the end of the year (1983)			



Assessment Reference Chart College Entrance Tests

	Bellevar	Pag Bend	Centralla	Clark	Coumbia Basin	District 17	Edmonds	Everen	Fort Stellaction)	Grays Marken	Green Blyey	1 mg Driene	Lower Columbia	North Seaule	Olympia Tech	Olympic	Penimsula	Senak Central	Shoreline	Skaga valley	South Seatte	Spokane Faits	Spokane	Тасольа	walla walla	Wennehee	Whatenm	Yakima valley
Washington Pre College Test	•	•	•	<u> </u>			•				•	•		•			•		•	•				•				•
Comprehensive Guidance & Placement	•		•						•								•							•	•		•	
Scholastic Apilitide Test	•		•	•		_					•		•				•						_					•
General Aptitude Test Battery									 														•	•				
Community College																				•								•
Self Assessment Measures																		6		•				•	•		•	
Clark College Placement				•																								, .
American College Tesi	•										•														•			•

Microfilmed From Best Available Copy



Writing and English Tests

All cor unity colleges are using one or more of the 25 tests listed to assess new students, writing skills. Results from testing are used for three purposes, for placement in appropriate courses, for diagnostic analysis, and for pre-/post test evaluation. The types of tests range from standardized forms (Comparative Guidance and Placement) and writing samples to "in-house" mastery lesis.

A listing of tests include:

Writing and Fague Took	Community		
Writing and English Tests	Colleges		
Writing Sample /"In-house" Assessment Tools	21	Learning Our Language Book () Test	,
Comparative Guidance and		Pre-Test, Gold and Green Pook	•
Placement	8		2
Nelson Denny Reading Test	8	Relevance of Patterns	2
Washington Pre College Test	8	Scholastic Aptitude Test	2
Wide Range Achieveme 1t Test	5	Test of Adult Basic Education	
Basic English Grammar Test	3	(TABE)	2
English 3200	3	American College Test	i
McGraw-Hill Basic Skills writing	-	Follett and Company, Pre GED	1
Test (B)	3	Pre-Test: Help Yourself Testbook	1
Community College		Random House	1
Assessment Program	2	Test for Standard Written English	1
College English Placement Test	2	Langan's Senience Skills Diagnosiic	
Cooperative English Placement		Test	1
Test	2		
Individualized English—Set J	2	Seventeen colleges provide stateme	
Iowa Test of Educational		test effectiveness. Their statements rai	
Development #3	2	a bit early to tell" to "great for individu	
Learning Our Language Book I		program." The comments on the effect	
Mastery Test	t	plethora of tests ranges from "que "excellent."	estionable" to

Review of Writing and English Tests

College	Test	Purpose and/or Population	Effectiveness		
	+				
Big Bend	Nelson Denny Reading	Rough placement instrument into English classes. Given to new academic students	OK as a rough placement fastrument		
Centralia	washington Pre College	Placement of new students into English classes	Effective in placement of new students		
	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Placement of new students into English classes	Effective in placement of new students		
	Scholastic Apritude Test	Placement of new students into Linglish classes	Effective in placement of new students		
Columbia Basin	In House Instrument	identification of students weaknesses Personal program can then be designed	Great for individualized whing program		
DistriC1 17	Learning Our Language Book I Mastery Test	Pre and post lesi in basic witing classes	Great for identifying what students need to know at the beginning of each quarter		
	Learning Our Language Book II rest	Pre test for OED students	Excellent for GED readiness		
Fi Siellacoom	Relevance of Patterns	ldentifies Student programs in an individualized setting	Effective		
	Comparative Guidance and Placement	Places stadents who intend to take English classes	Quesnonable		
Ordys Harlbu	McOraw Hill Basic Writing TestiBi	Placement of stade ats 400 Easkish classes	tdemak alion of sentence Datterns is appropriate to course tevels. Accurate for placement in College writing Less accurate for developmental levels of English Doesnatest writing ability.		
	Fest of Adult Basic Education	Placement of Students into classes for pre/ isostiests	OK Accurate and easy to senic		
	Writing Samples	hingnostic	ок		



Review of Writing & English Tests (continued)

Highline	waang Skills Test (ar house)	Placement of students within D.S. writing courses or writing lab	Still a bit early to tell but seems to be working well
	Willing Sample	Placement of students within DS writing courses or writing lab	Still a bit early to tell but seems to be working well
	lowa Test of Educational Development, Test 3 (Correctness of Expression)	For entry of new students into English 101	Good for placement purposes to see if students are ready for English 101.
lawer calumina	uilege English Placement Test عادد	Given to all students enrolling in the composition 101 103 sequence	OK English Department does place students into classes on basis of writing competence They use this test for screen lng
	College English Placement Test	Given to all students enrolling in the composition 101-103 sequence	OK English Department does place students into classes on basis of writing competence. They use this test for screen ing.
	Basie English Grammar	Criterion referenced	Very effective identifies specific skills, deficits.
Olympic Tech	Pre test from English 32uu	Given to all Developmental Studies students for determining English class needs.	Quite effective Aiso working on writing sample
	Comparative Guittance and Placement Writing	Placement of students in Developmental English	Not effective.
Olympic	Wide Range Achievement Test Level II	Refers students to English department	tämited
Skagu Valley	Community College Assessment Program	Placement of students into English classes	Foo carly to tell
Spokane Comunity	witting Sample	Refers students to cotrect level of writing program	Very satisfactory
	in House Usage Pre Tesi	Refers students to colrect level of writing program	Very satisfactory
Spokane Falls	Essay, holisocally scored on point scale	Given to all students enrolled in Writing 104	Identifies weak writers very well Needs to be adminis tered before students enroll in 10 t
Tacoma	Washigton Pie College Test	Places students in English courses	Works well within some scores on Nelson Denny Read ing Tesi
	Compatative Guidance and Placement Test	Places students in Utiglish courses	works well within some scores on Nelson Denny Read ing Tesi
Wendichee Valley	Individualized English SetJ	Parpoints problem areas of English Places students toto English moterals Used for ABE GED and HS Completion students	Excellent in areas of grammar
	Pollett & Company Pre GED	Pinpoints publicm areas of English Places stu- dents into English materials Used for ABE, GED and US Completion students	
	Pre fest of Gold Book and Green Book	Pre and post test for placement review and test ing	



Assessment Reference Chart Writing/English Tests

	Bellevae	Big Beng	Centalia		Columbia Basen	Dastric 17	Edmonds		Port Siellacoom	Grays Harbor	Green Baver	Highline	Lenver Columbia	North Seame	Ојутра Теср	Olympie	Peninsula	Semile Central	Shoreling	Skaga valley	South Seame	Stokeme Falls	Spokane	Тикоты	Walla Walla	Wendichee	Whakaai	Yakima Valley
	1	ğ	3	Clark	ह	Š	Edi	Byeren	يَّةِ	ŝ	ğ	Į.	ğ	Š.	ğ	हैं	2	Seta	å	Ska	801	Š	ods	Ž	3	1	3	٤
lowa Test of Educational Development #3			<u> </u>				-					•										İ						▮▫▮
Nelson Denny Rearling	•	•		•			Γ					- 		•					•		•				•		Γ	•
Washington Pre College		•	•								•						•		•	•				,				
Comprehensive Guid ance & Placement	_										•				•		•							•				•
Wide Range Achievement Test					-				_	ĺ						•									•			
English 3200						Г								•	•								_				Г	П
Community College - Assessment Program					-					-										•							Г	•
Masiery Tesi Learning Our Language	-					.2																				-		П
Mc Gray' Hill Basic Skills writing				Ţ																								
Writing Sample	· ·	•			_		2			•	•	•	-				•	•	•	•		•	•		•		Γ	П
In House Measures	-											•							•		•						•	
Fest for Adult Basic										•																	<u> </u>	
Individual English— Ser t					_					_																		
Foller and Company Pre-GF D																												
Pre Fest Gold and Green Book	_																									8		
College English Placement Test				Γ	<u> </u>				-				78															
Basic English Grammar Test								 																		П	•	П
Prefevance of Patterns							•						-											_		П		
Scholastic Applitude			•	Г												•												
Projesi Help Yourself Testbook				Γ																							•	
American College Lest			•		<u> </u>											•												
Cooperative English Placement Fest															•			•								П		
Random House									ú						П											П		
lesi (or Standard Watten English				•																								
Learning Our Lan grage Book (1 Test				Γ																								
Langan's Sentence Skills Diagnostic rest																							•					



Microfilmed From₂
Best Available Copy

Reading — Twenty four programs report the use of one or more of the 34 listed teading assessments. Effectiveness of the reading measurements vary according to the purposes for which they are used. It should be stated that it may be necessary to determine the reason for testing reading skills before an effective and appropriate test is determined. Several colleges responded that a trial and error process may be necessary before appropriate tests are discovered for specific needs.

Breakdown of types and usage follows.

Dioditao ii ii oi iy pee ana sea,	30.10.00.10.
Reading Tests	Community Colleges
Nelson Denny Reading Test	16
informal Readling Inventorie	1 1
GED English Pre Test	8
Reading for Understanding	8
Slosson Oral Reading Test	6
Wide Range Achievement Test	6
In-house Test	5
Nelson Reading Test	5
Sianford Diagnostic	5
Reading Progress Scale	4
Science Research Associates	5
English Reading Test for ESL	
Speakers	3
McGraw Hill Reading and Study Skills	y 3
Test of Adult Basic Education	4
California Achievement	2
Cloze	2
Descriptive Test of Language	
Skills	2
Dyslexia Determination Test	2
Gates McGinite .	2
Specific Language Disabilities	
Tesi	2
SRA Reading Inventory	2
Stanford Brown	2
AVT Learning Systems in Reacting	t
Botel Word Opposites	1
California Reading Test Levels	
1, 2 & 3	ı
Corrective Reading Program	
Placement Tesis	1
EDL. Reacting Efficiency Check	ı
•	

Reading Tests	Community Colleges
Iowa Başic Skills	1
READ	t
Reader's Inventory	t .
Spache & Taylor	t ,
Sieck-vaughn Masiery	1
Woodcock-Silvanoli Internal	
Reding inventory	1
Britter Informal	1 5

The "Nelson Denny Reading Test" is being used for a variety of purposes. Most colleges use the test as a rough placement tool to place students into reading classes or programs. Its versatility allows the results to be useful because the raw scores can be converted into grade equivalencies, stannies and percentiles. It also may be used for limited diagnosis because it measures reading rate, reading comprehension and vocabulary. It should be mentioned, however that the questions are not coded into specific comprehension areas. Forms E and F, however, do have an item analysis for vocabulary and comprehension but it is time consuming to identify the weak areas. Finally it may be used for a pre and post-test since there are several forms available.

Summarizing, college reading staffs feel that this instrument is effective as a gross placement measurement.

Even though 10 colleges use the Comparative Guidlance and Placement Test, there seems to be discontent. Its use to assess Students coming into reading labs and for placement into developmental and English classes is matched by statements that it "gives unrealistic parallel scores" and that it is "ineffective."

A mixed reaction is given to the "Reading for Understanding" measurement. Comments ranged from "OK for general placement" and "very effective" to "often inaccurate." It may be used for pre and post-testing.

The "Wide Range Achievement Test" is used for several reasons; diagnosis program placement and assistance in identifying which level of the Gates-McGinlie to be given.

Other tests are used to assist in approximating reading levels of students and are reported by individual colleges to be successful



Review of Reading Tests

Nelson Denny (C & D) Reading for Understanding	New students wanting to complete English requirements	OK as a rough placement in strument		
Reading for Understanding				
, rearring on a long state of	Placement in lab materials	OK for general placement inaccurate for diagnosis		
Science Research Associated	Pre and post test in reading courses	Very effective and reliable Easy to use		
Comparative Guldance and Placement Test Reading	Assesses new studentinto reading lab	Give arrealistic parallel score		
Nelson Denny Reading Test	Backup to CGP Pre & post test and some diagnosis	Very effective		
Gages McGinite	Oceasional pre & post jest	, ок		
Informal Reading Inventory	Backup for CGP for lower level students	Very effective		
Nelson Denny (A, B, C & 19	All students wishing to take reading courses	Serves our purpose well		
Reading for Understanding	Placement within RFU and SRA kits			
Science Research Associated	Placement within RFC and SRA kits			
Nelson Reading Test (A & B)	Assess students enrolled in developmental education and ESL classes	OK for broad measures More specific assessment is done with "88 Passages" and "100 Passages"		
Nelson Denny Reading (E & Fi	Assess students enrolled in developmental education and ESL classes	OK for broad measures More specific assessment is done with "800 Passages" and '100 Passages"		
Nelson Denny (A, B, C, & D)	Assesses students who are enrolled in reading and voc classes. Por pre and positiests.	OK for initial placement in mails		
Nelson Reading Test	Assess incoming ABE and GED students on those below 8 on CGP	Excellent		
Specific Language Disability Test	Sports LD students	OK but not normed		
AVT Learning Gystems in Reading	Given to H5 completion and Learning Assistance students	Extellent		
Nelsoo Reading Test	Given to low ability students and some BSL students	Very effective		
Nelsoo Denny Reading Test	Assessment new students and refers them to reading and English classes			
Comparative Guidance and Placement Fest Reading	Assessment new stadents and refers them to reading and English classes			
Nelson Denny (C.D. E & F)	oisen lo dil stadents taking co aposition se quence & stadents referred by faculty	Good for predicing who will have trouble in normal college curticulum. Norm referenced		
Gates McGam(e (D.E. F. 1-82)	Self referrals used for placing into reading courses	Norm referenced Vocabulary section not good Does that promote voc. educ in context		
Slosson Oral Reading	Helps identify level of Gares McGintin	ок		
Wide Range Achievement Test	Helps idennify level of Gates McGithic	ок		
Silvāroli	Diagnosiic	ОК		
John's Basic (R)	Diagnostic	ок		
Stanford Diagnosiic	Diagnosic	OK		
N son Denus (II)	Given to most all entering studi Ints for place ment in reading courses	Accurate placement insitu- ment Grad-Revels correlate to readaphin of tests. Context of reading passages not apropii me for College students.		
Test of Adali Bosic Education	Places students in classes and pre-and post- tests	Accurate Easy to score Low- stress for students		
Slosson	Used in class for placement	OK - Vanes		
1	Used in class for placement	OK – Valles		
Reading for Understanding	· ·			
Reading for Understanding Cloze Reader's Inventory	Used in class for placement	OK Valies		
	·	OK Varies OK Varies		
	Comparative Guidance and Placement Test Reading Nelson Denny Reading Test Cages McGinite Informal Beading Inventory Nelson Denny (A, B, C & D) Reading for Understanding Science Research Associated Nelson Reading Test (A & B) Nelson Denny (A, B C & D) Nelson Denny Reading (E & F) Nelson Beading Test Specific Language Disability Test AVT Learning (a) stems in Reading Nelson Reading Test Nelson Denny Reading Test Comparative Guidance and Placement Test Reading Nelson Denny (C, D, E & E) Gates Mc Ginite (D E, F E & 2) Slosson Oral Reading Wide Range Achievement Test Silvaroli John's Basic (R) Stanford Diagnosite Son Denny (I) Test of Addit Basic Education	Comparance Guidance and Placement Test Reading Nelson Denny Reading Test Gages McGinite Informal Reading Inventory Nelson Denny (A, B, C, & D) Reading for Understanding Nelson Denny (A, B, C, & D) Reading for Understanding Nelson Reading Test (A, B, B) Nelson Denny (B, B, C, B) Nelson Denny (B, B, C, B) Nelson Denny (B, B, C, B) Nelson Denny Reading (B, B) Nelson Denny Reading (B, B) Nelson Denny Reading (B, B) Nelson Denny (B, B, C, B) Nelson Reading Test ANT Learning (A) stems in Reading Nelson Denny (B, B, C, B) Nelson (B, B, C,		



Review of Reading Tests (continued)

Highline	Descriptive Test of Language Skills (Form A)	Given to new students who request It for place ment in reading courses (Counseling Cent,) ad ministers)	OK as a gross measure of reading skills. Quite good for placement			
	Nelson Denny (C, D, E F)	Pre and post test in Textbook Reading course and tab course (native speakers only)	Very effective			
	Reacting for Understanding (General 2.3)	Pre/ post icsts and placement in ESL in pro- grams in reading lab	Very effective			
	An English Reading Test (for speakers of English as a Foreign Language)	Pre/ post tests and placement in ESI, in pro- grams in reading lab	Very effective, no grad equiva lence, but scores can be es dmated in approx grade teve			
	Siosson (Oral Reading Test)	Use(I occasionally for fast assessment in read ing tab	OK, but only for word recogni- tion			
	Informal Reading Inventory toral read ing from Durrell Diagnostic Test)	Used as a quick measure of student's reading level in reading lab	Great for quick assessment and for oral miscues			
	Dyslexia Determination Test	Diagnostic purpose of remedial reading students	Aust got it Looks promising to diagnostic purposes on a + 1 basis in reading lab			
	In house paragraph and 4 questions this is a self assessment measure that is available to students in advising, counseling and other campus offices)	A fast measure for students to see if they need a reading course or need further reading testing	OK but only for its purpose			
Olympic Tech	SRA	Given to all students enrolled in reading and study skills	Seems to work well as a quick measure			
	Reading for Understanding (Senior)	Given to all stridents enrolled in reading and study skills	seems to work welf as a quick measure			
	CGP Reading	Placement of students in reading classes	Not effective			
Olympic	Wide Range Achievement Test Level II	Given to new functional reading students for placement within the program				
	Slosson (Oral Reacting)	Given to new functional reading students for placement within the program				
	Corrective Reading Program Place ment Test	Given to new functional reading students for placement within the program				
	Stanford Brown Test	Given to reading and GED students	Good comprehension on check			
Skagii Valley	Reading Progress Scale (Revere Publications)	For placement of students in reading materials and programs				
	SRC Reading Inventory	For placement in GED	Not used often because if is limed Also does not give as accrate information as Basic Reading Inventory			
Spokane Community	Stanford Diagnosiic Reading Test (A. B)	Given to Learning Center students	Good to get approximate reading level of students			
Spokane Falls	Reading Progress Scale	All students enrolling in Communications Learning Center	Let ellem for identifying low ability readers			
	Stanford Diagnostic	All students enrolling in communications Learning Center	Verv effective			
	Nelson Denny		Not effective			
	California Achievemeat		Very elective			
facoma	Nelson Reading Test	Assesses new ABE and GED students or those below 8 on SGP	Exceilent			
	Specific Language Disability Test	To spot LD students	OK but not normed			
Walla Walla	Slosson Oral Reading Leat	All entering reading and study skills students				
	Follett Informal Heading Placement in ventory forali	Diagnostic purposes and preyposities.s	OK some questions need revision to chiminate ves and no questions			
	Britron Actuir (Ri (oral)	Dagnostic purposes and pre/poscests	OK seems to miss main alvas questions			
	BBE Reading Efficiency Check	Pre/post tests	Very effective for comprehen sion check			
	COP	Given to vocational studentsto see if they need	Gives some (Hagnosis			



Assessment Reference Chart Reading Tests

	Pellevue	Big Bend	Centralia	Clark	Columbia Basin	Distner 17	Edmonds	Everen	Fort Stellacoons	Grays Harbor	Green River	Highline	Lower Columbia	Nonh Seame	Olympia Tech	Olympic	Peninsula	Seante Central	Shoreline	Skogii valley	South Seattle	Spokane Falls	Spokane	Tacona	Walla walla	Wennichee	Whaleom	Yakinia valley
Comprehensive Guidance & Placement			•						•						•			•						•	•			•
Nelson Denny Reading Test	•	•		•	•				•	•			•						•	•	•		•	•	•			•
Reading for Understanting		•	•	•					:	•		•	L	L	•				•									
informal Reading Inventories				•								•		•			•		•				_		•	•		
Science Research Associates			•											•	•			_										•
AVT Learning Systems in Reading			 	يسد .					•																		•	
Nelson Reading Test				•																				•	•			
Description Test in Language Skill						 						•														ļ		
English Reading Test for ESL Speakers												8																
Dyslexia Determination Test																												
Solosson Oral Reading Test																									•			
Wide Range Achievement Test				•									•			•												•
Stanford/Brown																												
Stanford Diagnostic																												
Test for Adult Basic Education			, I									9								•								
Reading Progress Scale				•																•								
California Achievemeni																		•										
Specific Language Disability Test																												



Assessment Reference Chart Reading Tests (continued)

	Bellevue	Big Bend	Centralia	Chirk	Columbia Bastn	tustact 17	Ednyends	Everen	Pon Stellacoom	Gabys Hathor	Green Hiver	rukhine.	Lower Columbia	North Seattle	Olympia Tech	Olympic	Perunstala	Seante Central	Shoretine	skagu vaney	South Scanle	Spokane Falls	Spokene	Тасота	walla walla	Wehatchee	Whatenn	Yakima Valley
BDL Reading Efficiency Check																						_						П
lowa Basic Skills																												•
Reader's Inventory												_				,											_	П
McGraw Hill Reading & Study Skills																		`										П
SRA Reading Inventory																												
Steck Vauhn Mastery																						_						П
GED English Pre Test																		=			-							
Gates McGinite																										_		П
Spache & Taylor										=																		П
Cloze																												
Corrective Reading Program Placement Test																												
In House Measures												•	·							•								
Washington Prc College Test								Γ-							\			- -					Г					\prod
READ																												П
Brition Informal																											•	П
Woodeock Silvanoil In ternal Reading Inventory				=																								П
California Reading Test Level 1-2-3			<u> </u>																									
Botel Word Opposites																											#5	



Mathematics Tests

Among the 25 colleges and districts reporting the mare thirty different mathematics tests used for purposes of diag tiosis and/ or placement. These lesis are either over to all entering college students or to developmental mathematics students.

The tests include:

THE TESTS INCIDATE	
	Community
Math Tests	Colleges
In house Tests	12
Washington Pre College Test	10
Comparative Guidance and	2
Placement	9
Official GED Practice Test	7
American College Test	6
Scholastic Aptitude Test	6
Wikle Range Achievement Test	6
Steck-Vaughn Test	5
Math Placement Tests	4 .
Test of Adult Basic Education	4
Basic Skills in Arithmetic	4
Working with Numbers	3
Cooperative Math Test-Algebra	
1.11.111	2
Spangler Arithmetic Essentials	
Pre Test	2
Steck-Vaughn Fundamentals	
of Anthmetic	2 ,
Science Research	
Associates Diagnosis	2
Arithmetic: The Essentials	1
AVT Learning Systems	
Diagnostic Tests	l l
Basic Skills With Whole	
Numbers	ı
Basic Facts	ı
Community College	
Assessment	<u>,</u>
College Board in Anthmetic	t .
Iowa Basic Skills Test	!
Lankton Blyth	ţ.
Math Association of America	1
McGraw-Hill Math Test	1
Metropolitan Achievement	2
Noonan Spradley	t
Science Research Associates	_
Probe M & L	1
PCSP •	1

In the summary which follows the tests have been rearranged according to their use followed by statements of their effectiveness. The reporting college is listed. It is anticipated that this list may be an easy reference for individuals wishing to review unfamiliar testing materials.

General College Population Mathematics Tests

Matticinatics resis										
Very Effective Tests	College									
In house	Big Bend									
AVT Learning Systems Diagnosis	For Stellacoom									
MCGraw Hill Hasic Skills Math	Grays Harbor									
Cooperative Mathematics—Algebra Lildit	Highline									
cooperative Guidance and Placement Applied Anthmetic, Computation	Olympia Technical									
Ster k Yaughn Basic Basentials of Math. Parts Land II	District #17									

Moderately Effective Tests	Colle ge
Math Association of America Tests Sk/IB, BA/IC, CR/IB	Fort Stellacoom
Basic Skills Test, Form A	North Seattle
Wide Range Achievement Test Level I, Level II	Olympic
Cooperative Guidance and Placement All Levels	Tacoma
Qualified Effective Tests	College
Washington Pre College	Centralia
Cooperative Guldance and Placement All Levels	Centralla
Scholastic Apilitude Tex.	Centralia
American College Test	Centralia
Lankton Blyth	North Seattle
Arkhmetic. The Essentials	Olympic Technical
Cooperative Guidance and Placement Applied Arithmetic-Computation	Yakima Valley
Cooperative Guidance and Placement Elementary Algebra	Yakima Valley

Developmental Program Mathematics Tests Used for Developmental Students Only

Very Elfective Tests	College
Official GED Practice Tesis Math. Forms A, B	Olympic
Haidi's Pre Test (in house)	Spokane
College Board in Arithmetic Arithmetic Test	Spokane
hasic Facts Test for Add, Subtract, Multiply and Divide	Tacoma
Working with Numbers Mastery Test I & II	wenatchee Valley
Metropolitan Achlevement Tests	wenatchne Valley
Basic Skills Diagnostic Test	Whatcom
Sieck Vaughn Maih Masiery fleview	Yakima Valley
Wide flange Achievement Test	Yakıma Valley
lowa Basic Skills Test (Forms 5 & 6)	Yakıma Valley
Moderately Effective Tests	College

Moderately Effective Tests	College
In house	Columbia Basin
Steck Vaughn Mastery 16519	Cirays Harbor
Test of Adult Basic Education	Grays Harbot
Noonan Spradley Diagnostic Program Computation Skills	Olympic Technical
College Board in Arithmetic Elem. Alg. Inter-Alg.	Spokane
Working With Numbers Test	Tacoma
Test of Atlult Basic Education	instact #17
Steck Vaughn Placement Survey	District #17

Tests Having No Effective Rank	College
SRA Probe M & Probe L	tacoma
PCSP Pre Tesi Basic Skills With Whole Numbers	Tacoma
SRA D agnosis (Forms A & B)	TaCOIno
Community College Assessment Program	Skaga Volley



Review of Mathematics Tests

College_	Tests	Purposes and/or Population	Effectiveness
Big Bend	In House Diagnosity and Placement Test	Placement in math classes and programs in lab	Very effective
Centrolio	washington Pre College Test	For placement in math classes in conjunction with previous math classes and grades	Not perfect, but overall, OK
	СОР	For placement in marh classes in conjunction with previous math classes and grades	Not perfect, but overall, OK
	Scholastic Aptitude Tesi	For placement in math classes in confunction with previous math classes and grades	Not perfect, but overall, OK
	ACT	Por placement in math classes in conjunction with previous math classes and grades	Not perfect, but overall, OK
Columbia Basin	In House Test	For placement in Dev Math classes.	Works OK
Ft Stellacoom	AVT Learning Systems Diagnostic Tesi	All HS students & referral students from accig instructors	Excellent Pinplonts strengths/weaknesses of students.
	Math Placement Tests (Math Assoc of America) SK/1B, BA/10, CR/1B	Given new students who intend to take math	Math dept seems pleased with recommendations
Highline	Cooperative Mothematics Test, Algebra 1, II, III	Given students having some algebra and wish to continue for placement into math classes	very effective Data taken over years supportive.
North Seattle	Basic Skills Test Form A	All students who want to take algebra	Good
	Lankton/Blyth talso use WPC test scores if available)	All students taking math	ок
Olympic Technical	Nuonan Spradley Diagnostic Program of Computation Skills	All developmental math students	Good Pinpoints week areas but too long and not many story problems
•	Pre test from Spangler's Arithmetic The Essentials	For diagnosts	Good test but too long Pinpoints weaknesses
	CGP Math and the Applied Arithmetic	All entering students for place mpt in math	very effective
Olympic	Computation WRAT Level I and Level II	All functional math students. Some GED students	Good for general placement purposes
	्री Official GED Fractice Test Math. Form A. B	Check skill levels of GED students	Very effective
Ska@t Valley	Community College Assessment Test	Determine if incoming students need Dev etasses	Too early to tell
Spokane	Haldi's Pretest (in house test)	Assess basic math/all mentary algebra students	Very effective
_	College Board Tesiş - Artibmetic, Elem Algebra, Int Algebra	Used in Learning Center at reduest of counselors/instructors	OK Arithmenc lest very effective
Tacoma	CGP	indicator of math knowledge of all full time new stodents	Good as panial indicator
	Basic Facis Test for addition. subtraction multiplication, division	To assess all ABE/GED students	Very good if kept to five nilnute limitig
	SRA Probe M & L	Diagnosis	
	PCSP Tre tests	Diagnosis	
	Basic Skills Tests with whole Numbers	เหลรก์ดสร	
	SRA Diagnosis tiform A or B)	Pre/post lest per reading level for Placement of students in materials	
1	Working with Numbers Test	Assess GED Prep class	οK



Review of Mathematics Tests (continued)

District #17	steck vaughn Basic Essentials of Math Part (Testing, math Placement for ! reoming students	Excellent
	Basic Essentials Moth Part It	Post lest	Very effective
	Test of Adult Basic Education	Pre/post placement of GED/ABE students.	ок
	Steck-Vaughn Placement Survey	Pre/post placement test for GED students	ок
Yakima väll e y	Steck Vaughn Math Mastery Review	Diagnosis of ABE students	Very effective
	wRAT{Math) wide Range Achievement Test	Diagnosis of ABE students	Very effective
	APplied Arithmetic Placement Test/CGP	Placement for students not have had math in some time	Sub-ective
	Computation Pi ⁻ cement Test of CGP	Placement for students with no algebra background	OK for placement Excellent for finding weak spots.
	Elementary Algebra Placement Test/CGP	Placement of students with some algebra	Directions difficult to follow
	iowa Basic Skills Tesi (Forms 5 & 6)	Given to inco , ling ABE students.	Good for placement in our ABE materials.
Grays Harbor	McGraw Hill Basic Skills Math Test	Placement of students Into math classes	Accurate predictor of success in various levels. Power test
	Test of Adult Basic Education	Pre/post tes	OK Accurate and easy to score
	Steck-Vaughn Mastery Test	Placement of students into materials	OK Fairly accurate
	Working with Numbers, Fundamentals of Arthmetic Series	•	
wenatchee Valley	Working with Numbers Mastery	Placement of students Into materials	Excellent for placement/ follow-up re testing
	Metropolitan Achlevement Tests	Diagnosis	Very effective for pinpointing areas needing review.
Whatcom	Basic Skills Diagnostic Test	Given to pre college basic arithmetic students	Quite useful



Assessment Reference Chart Mathematics Tests

	fiellevue	Big Beng	Сепитана	Clark	Columbia Basin	District 17	Edmonds	Everen	For Srellacoom	Grays Hathor	Green River	Highime	Lower Columbia	North Searthe	окутыв Тесп	Olympic	Peninsula	Seattle Central	Shoreline	Skagli valley	South Seame	Spokane Falls	Spokane	Tacnma	Walla Walla	Wenarchee	Whalcom	Yakima valley
Washington Pre College	=	•		•	10	10	Ψ	Ιū	Ĭű.	10	5	Ξ	13	Ž	6	0	•	Ø	জ	S	S.	8	ज	۴	2	2	*	F .
Comprehensive Guld ance and Placement							一								•			•				一			•			П
Cooperative Math Test																		•								П		
AVT Learning Systems Diagnostic Test						,			•																			
Scholastic Apilitude Test	•		•														•	•										
American College Test	•		•	•													•								•			
Math Placement Tests			•	•																								П
Basic Skills Diagnostic Test																		•									•	
Noonon Spradley																												
Lankton Blyth														•				_		· 4	<u>ي</u>							
Spangler Arthmetic Essentials Pre Test													_															
Official GED Practice Test		_																•							•			
Community College Assessment Test																												
College Board In																												
Bade racis													İ											•				
SHA Probe M & L																												
Working with Numbers														Ì														
Steck Vaughn Tests				•																								
Test of Adult Basic Education						•				•								•										
lowa Basic Skills Tesi												:																•
McGraw Hill Math																										Ш		
Siech Vaußhn Fun damentals/Additionation																												
Metropolitan Achtevement						J																						Ц
In House Measures	•				•														•			•	•			Ш		Ш
SRA Diagnosis																										Ш		\square
Wide Range Achievement Test																	•									Ш		■
Math Association of America						Щ									i											Ш		Ц
Arthimetic The Essentials																										Ш		
PCSP		i	\Box								i				[_[Ш		Щ
Basic Skilis Tesi		_	Ц																					•				



ESL (English as a Second Language) Tests

A variety of test incasurements are used for placement, for diagnosis and for pre and posttesting. Fifteen measurements were identified in sixteen colleges.

The most frequently used tests include the Test of Adult Basic Education (TABE), the Comprehensive English Language Test (CELT), the Michigan Test of English Language Proficiency and the English Reading Test for ESL Speakers.

A breakdown of the types and usage follows:

ESL Tests	Community Colleges		
Michigan Test of English Proficiency	9	Test for Adult Basic Education	3
English Reading Test for ESL		Davis .	l
Speakers	5	English Proficiency	l
Comprehensive English Language		TOEFL	1
Test (CELT)	4	Writing Sample	1
ESL Oral Assessment	4	The respondents to the survey indica	ned some dissa-
Nelson Denny	3	usfaction with the current ESL tests.	
Structure Test of English Language		finding "the ideal test" which provide	e sufficient infor-
(STEL)	3	mation for determining the levels of	
ILLYON	2	ciency is difficult. There is 1001 for 1	
In house Literacy Tests	2	the measurements.	inprovement ar
Reading for Understanding	2	the measurements.	

Review of English as a Secon'd Language

College	<u>Tests</u>	Purposes and/or Population	<u>Effectiveness</u>
Big Bend	Test of Adult Basic Education	All incoming ESL students	Generally effective Easy to score. Cumbersome to att minister
Clark	Nelson Denny Reading Test (Form E and F)	Place ESI students in Dev Educ courses	Gand
	Nelson Reading Test (Form E and F)	Place ESL students in Voc. Educ courses	Good
Ldmonds	CELT Grammer SA (Comprehensive Engl Lang Test)	To assess those requesting ESL courses	Good for placement in ES1. courses
	STEL (Structure Test of English Language)	Given to refugees only	Good as gross measure to di vide students into sub groups
Highline	CELT (Vocabulary)	Pre/post test in Dev Voc courses, mostly Asian students, placement	Good
	Michigan Test of English Language Proficiency	SL and Writing Placement classes	OK Scems to work
	Reading for Understanding (General)	Pre/post test of ESL students in basic reading	Good
	English Rrading TEst for ESL Speakers	Pre/post test and Placement of ESL students in reading lab materials	Excellent for malls (dentifica- tion
Spokane	English Reading Test for ESL Speakers	Placement of ESL students in all but vocational programs	Not too satisfactory
	Michigan Test	Por student enrollment in 100 level classes	Not effective
Walla Wallo	English Reading Test	Pre/post test for ESL acad and voc students	 -
o	Structure Test of Eng. Lang. Forms 1, 2, Beg. Int. Adv	Given to incoming ESL students Who can read	ок
•	Illyon Oral Interview	Given ESL students entolled in vocational pre Stams	
	BSL Oral Assessment	To determine course level for BSL students	<u> </u>
instrut#17	English Proficiency Test(Form B)	To assess ESC students on grammar	Good for measuring grammal skills only No grade equiva lency
	English Proliciency Test (Form C)	Preypost lest for grammar materials placement	very effective
	English Reading Test	Placement in reading materials	Very effective
Yakıma Valley	Illyon Test for ESL	Diagnosis/placement	ок



Assessment Reference Chart English as a Second Language Tests

	Bellevue	IMR Beng	Centratin	Clark	Columbia Basin	Distuct 17	Edmonds	Everen	Fon Stellacoom	Grays Harlbor	Green River	Highine	Lower Ca'dribla	Nonh seame	Olympia Tech	Olympic	Peninsula	Seartle Centui	Shoreling	Skagii Valley	South Seattle	Spokane Faits	Spokane	Тасопа	Walls Walls	Wenaichee	Whatcom	Yakıma Vatley
Test of Adult Basic Education		=									8													٥				
Nelson Denny																											Γ	
Comprehensive English Language Test																												
Structure Test of English Language																									-			abla
ILLYON																	٥											
English Proficiency							Γ	Г				Г												Г				П
Michigan Yesi of English Proficiency					Γ																							
English Reading Test for ESL Speakers				Ī		K																			*			П
Nelson Reading Test																												\bigcap
Reading for Understanding																												П
ESL Oral Assessment																												П
Writing Sample		-																										П
TOEFI.]																								П
Davis																			_								abla	П
In House Literacy Tests																												



Vocational Assessment Measures

vocational assessment measures are used extensively throughout the community college system. However, their form may be quite different from the assessment systems in basic skills areas. Many vocational instructors interview prospective students, some programs use factoring systems which take into account previous work experience as well as preparatory coursework. The special testing information requested through the Assessment survey only brought two responses. Highline Community College indicated that it uses a number of standardized tests for the health occupations, printing, data processing and production illustration programs spokane community College stated that they use tests for science classes, data processing and pre-nursing placement.

A number of other community colleges do use tests for appraising entry into specific vocational programs. As an example, it is understood that the application and selection process for dental hygiene includes a dental hygiene applitude test. A follow up to this review should include a thorough search for additional vocational assessment procedures. At this time na recommendations or conclusions can be made regarding specific vocational testing programs.

The information from the two responding colleges is presented:

Assessment Reference Chart Vocational Tests

	Bellevan	Partiend	(entraba	Clark	Colembia Base	Physika 17	Extravents	Everen	Furt Stell, resoura	Gars Hathar	Green Haver	HRRIlling	Lower Colorities	North Security	Olympia Tech	(M) rapik:	Peninsalia	Scanle Cennal	Shorelings	skaga valley	South Sesame	Spokene Falls	Spokane	Talcoma	Walle Walle	Wrnanchee	Whatenn	Vakima Valley
Employee Apurode Survey																												
School and College Ability Test																												П
Crawford Small Paris Manual Dexterity												-																П
School and College Ability Verbal and Math												•																П
IBM Aptitude for Programmers												-																П
Differential Aptitude Test of Language Skills												=							=									П
Comprehensive Guid ance & Placement Test																							=					
Revised Programs Approde Lest																							=					
Card Punch Operators Aprillude Test																							=					
In Houst Measures			38																									
Differential Aptitude Lest							,			-								•										



Microfilmed From Best Available Copy

"Special Area" Assessments

Assessment measures were highlighted by a number of colleges in spelling, study skills, vocabulary and general aptitude

A listing of the measures reported and their use in the community colleges is given

Area	Name	Colleges
Spelling	Morphographic Spelling	2
	Spelling Demons	4
	Spelling Survey	5
	WRAT Spelling	l
Study Skitls	Study Skills Learning Skills Improvement	ı
	McGraw-Hill Basic Study Skills	t
•	Study Skills Survey	2
Other	Other Keys to More Powerful Vocabulary	2
	General Aptitude Battery	3
	General Education Performance Index	1
	tnformal Assessment	6

Undoubtedly there are more special areas tests used in the community colleges that were not obtained through the current survey. As in the previous section, a follow up to this review should include a thorough search for additional spelling, study skills, vocabulary and other assessment measures. At this time no recommendations or conclusions can be made regarding special testing programs.

Special Area Assessments Tests

College	Tests	Purposes and/or Populations	Effectiveness
Spokene Falls	(.earning Skills Inventory (A Self Assess ment)	Used to recommend study skills modules	Excellent
Olympia Technicai	McGraw Hill Basic Skills System Study Skills Test	All students in study skills classs	Some positions good Test now 12 yrs old
Olympic	MorPhographic Spelling Placement	Placement of students within spelling Program	Good
Wallo Wallo	General Education Performance Index (GEPI)	To determine Gen students readiness to take the exam	Good
	SORT - Slosson Oral Reading Test	Given to ABE and GED students	Good for Quick assessment
Big Bend	Speiling Demons (diagnostic rest) and Keys to a More Powerful Vocabulary (Ore test)	For placement in spelling and vocabulary classes	Both work very well
Lower Columbia	Spelling Survey	Criterion referenced	Very effective, kiemilies skills deficits
	Study Skills survey	Criterion referenced	Very effective, identifies skills deficts
Wenarchee valley	Informal Assessment	To determine if students need help in consumer skills	



Assessment Reference Chart Special Area Assessments

						٠,	~	-	~-	- 1		~ ₂				- 4 .			_									
·.	Befferue	Mk Bent	Contralis	Clurk	Columbia Basın	Disinci 17	Edmonds	Everen	Fon Steffacoorn	Grays Harbor	Green raver	Habline	Lower Columbia	Nonh Seante	Olympia Tech	Olympic	Peninsula	Sewile Central	Shoreline	Skagir Valley	South Seatte	Spokane Falls	Spokane	Тасота	waija walia	W. naichee	Whatcom	Yakima Valley
Learning Skills Improvement																						•						
Morphographic Spelling	•															•												
Spelling Demons	•	•										•																
Keys to a More Powerful Vocabulary		•																				•						
McGraw Hill Basic Study Skills																				,								
Washington Occupation at information System			•															•										
General Aplitude Test Battery							•																•					
General Educational Performance Index																	•		•						•			
Spelling Survey			•																						•			
Study Skills Survey													•															
Informal Assessment	•																			•					•			
Career Placement Inventory/Strong Campbell It			•																									
COPS																			•									
sbs																												
Career Assistance Inventory												•																
Strong Campbell																												
Wide Range Achieve ment_Test_Spelling												•																

Microfilmed From Best Available Copy 26



Conclusions

The placing of students in appropriate course levels of reading, writing and mathematics, and identifying study skills and career needs are acknowledged as necessary roles for all community colleges

The preceding pages provide a current view of assessment activities. The listing of assessment measures adds to the collective resources available and may be used to compare local assessment systems

Six conclusions have been drawn from the presented data.

- Entry assessment is not uniform throughout the community college system. However, programs for entry assessment are receiving renewed interest.
- There is no single assessment measure that surfaced as the 'best' or 'ideal' screening device. In each specific area several assessment measures are used more than others. Selection seems to be based upon the instructor's background, training and knowledge of available resources.
- 3. Statements relating to assessment effectiveness vary. Stated purposes and the populations involved in the assessment are matched against a test. Questions are then asked: Does it do what it was supposed to do? Does it screen or place to the degree instructors expect?
- 4 Campuswide coordination of assessment does not exist in the community college system. Different areas within a college hold particular responsibilities. Campuswide directions for structuring, systematizing or utilizing assessment measures does not occur.
- 5. Response did not materialize regarding evaluation of local assessment measures and systems. At the state level there is also no structure available for evaluation. The survey did not solicit policy statements relating to evaluation. Follow-up activities to this report may determine policy positions which lead to evaluation programs.

Recommendations

From the survey and review of the assessment, the following recommendations are presented for consideration:

- t In order to consolidate assessment policies, practices and especially interpretations within each community college, it is recommended that at least one person or office be identified on each campus which will be knowledgeable about or responsible for coordinating the college assessment system.
- 2 It is recommended that coordination and improvement of assessment policies be promoted by the

- chief executive officer as well as by administrative deans in each community college.
- it is recommended that in each college the pur poses, objectives and policies in assessment practices be determined. They should be clearly stated so that overassessment does not occur
- 4. It is recommended that assessment instruments be used solely for the purpose which they have been designed. Instructors should be encouraged to use Buros Mental Measurements Yearbook before selecting an assessment instrument. This source provides an evaluation by impartial reviewers. Manuals and specimen sets should be studied before purchasing a particular test
- s. College instructors, counselors and advisors need staff development workshop programs 1) on new assessment instruments; 2) on revised forms of existing instruments in current established programs; and 3) on current research results based on successful programs. A statewide newsletter would assist in achieving some continuity by reporting on new assessment practices and strategies. Publishers of new assessment instruments should be en couraged to send information to each campus. For these reasons it is recommended that a state wide support system for assessment be established at the State Board for Community Colleges levei.
- 6. It is recommended that evaluation of assessment instruments and programs be implemented at least every four years on each campus 'The "peer review" system, initiated by Adult Basic Education Programs (ABE), is a reasonable approach to evaluation since it emphasizes sharing of alternatives and opportunities, it provides a learning experience for both the staff being reviewed and for the team of reviewers. Emphasis is on the clarification, support and suggestions for improved quality
- 7.It is recommended that a "council on assessment" be established which provides the community college system with a panel of representatives for reviewing statewide assessment programming. This council may be associated with State Board operations or with the instructional Commission.
- 8. It is recommended that current assessment information within the community college system be available in the WADE BANK computenzed resources system. An "assessment network" would then be available to all college personnel.
- It is recommended that research should be converged regarding the effectiveness of assessment programs.
- practices and instruments be reviewed for their reasonableness and effectiveness.



Data Collection Schedule

Date	Activity
May. 1982	Questionnaire distributed at WADE conference.
June — July. 1982	Letters and questionnaires sent to colleges not yet responding to questionnaire.
July — August. 1982	Colleges not yet responding to questionnaires were telephoned. Subsequently, questionnaires were sent to these colleges again.
August/September, 1982	Letters and questionnaires sent to colleges not yet responding.
November, 1982	Cross reference chart sent to all colleges for an update of information supplied or not supplied by questionnaire. (This was a chance for colleges that had not yet responded to provide information for our project.)
December/January, 1982—83	Cross-reference data analyzed and developed
May. 1983	Report presented at the WADE Conference



Section III

Immigrant and Refugee Education



Section III

Immigrant and Refugee Education

The impact of immigrant and refugee students five years ago put pressure on English as Second Language classes in many community colleges. Today the impact is being felt in regular academic transfer and vocational training programs as these students seek further education.

The charge given to the Task Force on Immigrant and Refugee Education was to provide a statement of current conditions and a list of solutions.

This section reviews:

Extent of the impact
Process of survey development and information gathering
Review of survey responses based on problems, solutions and unmet needs
Program model
Recommendations



39

29

Immigrant and Refugee Education

Extent of the Impact

Washington state, because of its geographical location, has become a center for immigrants and refugees to settle. A few years ago most of these individuals enrolled in the survival and beginning ESL classes offered by community colleges. Now, ho wever, limited English speaking students are taking coursework all across the curriculum.

Current data shows that the State has up to 35,000 Southeast Asian refugees During the 1981 fall quarter, 2,331 individuals were enrolled in regular tuition-paying classes. During the 1982 fall quarter, 2050 were in attendance. From the course coding roster for the same period, 74°° students were enrolled in ESL classes.

Carol Aikman, in an article in "Lifelong Learning, the Adult Years," (April, 1982) states that "a growing problem at community colleges is the strain placed on the developmental skills or remedial programs by students who come to the United States as refugees." She continues by saying that the colleges face a major problem in how to cope with the increasing numbers of students from a variety of nationalities. This impact is certainly true at Seattle Central Community College, with 3572 or nearly half of all refugee and immigrant students in the state, it has up to 35 different languages spoken by students during most quarters.

Not only are ESI, programs strained to capacity in most colleges, but the impact is experienced now by instructors in many general college academic and vocational classes. Aikman says "there is the stress and frustration endured by the instructor who is concerned about the student, but who frequently does not have the time to respond to the student's problem. Even if he(she) had time, how could she(he) help a student who barely speaks English?"

With shrinking finds being available to the community college system, the range of available services has diminished. ESL classes available to limited English speakers have concentrated on college credit areas Students with iow English proficiency have been relegated to fewer offerings of ABE and ESL classes characterized by either larger classes or waiting lists. There is anticipated to be little change during the next several years.

The community college that offers ESL classes for immigrants and refugee students contracts with the Department of Social and Health Services for short term vocational training and some assistance in job search efforts. There is a need to expand these vocational training options in the colleges. It is recognized, however, that funding for immigrants and refugee training programs is only assured for nine month periods and is continually experiencing cutbacks. Thus the need for training will continue with inconsistency remaining a large problem.

Process

Dunng the spring of 1982 a Task Force was formed to identify current needs and problems from community colleges facing the impact of immigrant, and refugee students in regular mainstream classes. It enlarged this main charge by seeking solutions from faculty members who instruct these students in regular academic and vocational courses. It also wanted to determine what problems or needs could be anticipated during the next several years since the number of limited English speaking students will continue to increase.

A survey from was sent to each community college (see Appendix III). It requested opinions relating to 1) problems students faced prior to entering their classes or training programs, 2) problems students encountered while enrolled in their classes or training programs, and 3) problems Ilmited English speaking students confronted upon completion of their course or training programs.

A total of 57 surveys were returned from 16 campuses in Washington. Two thirds of the respondents were in developmental education departments or counseling services. Only One-third of the survey responses came from faculty in academic and vocational departments such as Business, Psychology, Electronics and Welding.

Review of Survey Responses

As expected, the highest concern was for lack of adequate skills in English, both written and spoken. The respondents statements included comments such as: "barely adequate", "enormous needs, "Inadequate skills due to inexperience" and "can hardly converse"

A request for solutions that were currently being used did bring a variety of comments. Several examples were "we use much one-to-one lab contact and conversation with the instructor" and "encouraging students to spend as many hours each day as possible in reading and writing labs".

A request was made for comments on anticipated problems Examples of these were "conversation in English will continue to be a problem", "we need more (developmental) speech classes"; and "there needs to be more opportunities for students to repeat parts of classes rather than take an entire class over again"



Survey Area I Problems Prior to Entering Courses or Programs

1 Survey responses identified the following problems:

problems:	No make of
Inadequate skills in English	Number of Responses
All English skills are weak	29
Speaking skills need improvement	18
Listening skills need improvement	H
Writing skills need improvement	9
Reading Skills need improvement	4
Understanding and following directions	
need improvement	- 2
Being able to fill out forms needs	
‡mprovemenr	1
 Inability to take tests in English 	1
Inability to write lab reports	1
to a dominate and a state of the state of th	
inadequate skills in mathematics.	
No problems Second tracking and the areas (as	14
Some problems in Specific areas (an example is statistics in psychology)	
Word problems and Specific terminology	8
create difficulties	2
create difficulties	2
Inadequate study skills.	
Inadequate English skills	4
Lack efficient time management relating	
Study needs	` з
Note taking	ı
Critical thinking skills	1
 Taking responsibility of one's own learning 	ig is
needed	ı
Career directions and needs	_
No problems	6
Lack of awareness exists for career choice	
Unrealistic goals Poor self-evaluation abilities	5 3
Career choices influenced by current	3
financial pressures	2
Career choices are influenced by the imp	
of cultural differences	2
Same difficulty in career choices as	_
American students	1
	,
Culmral diferences	
· Difficulties in adapting to their new country	rv
and its "system"	9
No cultural problems	6
Cultural differences exist	5
• Tendency to be "too Shy" and lacking in	
assertiveness	2
Reflected to their English difficulties and	
Study skills	. 2
 Need to verbally communicate more and 	
project their voices	1
Women Students uncomfortable	
participating in classes with men student	
and men are uncomfortable with female	as 1
teachers	'

Other problems that exist before immigrant and refugee students enter a course or program

necds

Gap betwen refugee and general ESL courses and regular basic skills classes as well as a gap into other English-related areas
 Equipment damage by students
 Isolated from general American life
 Distracted by demands of ethnic organizations on campus
 Faculty members complain about immigrant and refugee students not being prepared, yet they do not seek adequate identification of their students'

2. Survey responses offered the following solutions:

	Number of Responses
Referral to some kind of futoring services	
and/or Study SkillS classes	26
 Advised to take more conversation 	
classes or experiences	19
Advised to take more ESL classes	13
Referral to counseling programs,	
especially in career planning programs	12
Referral to developmental/remedial	
courses/labs for reading and writing	
programs	10
Instructors Should handle educational	
needs on an individual basis	8
 Instructors need to plan to use different 	
kinds of teaching techniques	6
Referral to additional ABE classes	4
Referral to math labs	3
Bilingua, assistance	2
International club activities	1
Personal assistance by Instructors	1

Survey responses identified the following anticipated problems:

	Number of Responses
ESL classes must bridge the gap between Est, and the regular academic	
and vocational programs • Lack of adequate funding will continue.	26
diminished financial aid for students	
and ESL program support Continuing Student failure and	12
frustration • Need for emphasis on two way cultural	7
awareness support The Continuing lack of available	7
employment	3



41

Survey Area II

Faculty members next identified probler is while students were enrolled in classes.

90% Indicated a problem in English proficiency, 40% stated students had inadequate career awareness.

Inadequate basic skills Continuing need for English language training No problems More basic skills Assistance with abstraction and conceptualization needed Assistance with spelling forthography) Referrals needed to appropriate classes	Number of Responses 9 5 3 1 1
Excessive time communents interfere with studies: • Does not seem to interfere with classwork	5
 A problem with at least half of all refugee students Child care Handled on a case by case basis Cuts in student benefits creates more 	3 2 2
need for employment, which lessens the time for study More time must be spent on class preparation Classes meet too often for students who	2 1
must work	1
Lack of availability of support services: • Lack of eounselor support • Lack of a bonaficle program or system for services with sensitivity and	Number of Responses 4
understanding throughout the college Lack of English skills assistance or bilingual help within counseling services	4 3
No problem Mental health assistance Financial aid assistance	3 2 2
Special Services programs need to provide assistance Limited English speaking students don't.	ı
use available services • Services used as needed by students • Tuioning assistance needed at the beginning of coursework for limited	1
English speaking students More assistance needed for students attending evening classes	l 1
Other needs for immigrant and refugee students who are cirolled in regular	
College classes:	

Students need to have a better	
understanding of the overall college	
system	
Instructors need to make sure	
assignments are clearly understood	
An advocate is needed to assist each	
sludent to get through the red tape of	
the college 🛷 🖊	
Faculty need to recognize the tension	
students (ace in seeking a four-year	
degree as opposed to getting an	
immediate job	
some students not colle, e oriented	
Insufficient funds for education and they	
cannot use ESL courses for humanities	
credits which create some hardships	
The necessity of part time work	
interfered with a student's time for	
learning	
 Need for preparing students to enter 	
technical training programs	

Another suggestion was that bilingual help be available through the colleges' International Club program.

	Number of Responses
Improved tutoring systems either	
through college tutoling programs or as	
a part of the regular class activity	· 5
 Students must develop (textbility if they 	
wish to attend college	5
Current students should act as	
translators for new students as the need	
arises. Students might be hired under	
work-study financial aids assistance for	
this activity	6
Greater use of basic skills programs	
including writing labs, math labs and	
study skills courses	4
Student should understand that courses	
may have to be repeated and that this is	
acceptable	ŧ
More individual conferences between	
students and faculty are needed	1
The straing of lecture notes should be	
promoted and viewed as acceptable	ŧ
Students should be encouraged to seek	
experiences that allow for greater	
enculturation	1
Counseling should be a referral source	
with more group advising and new	
immigrant and refugee students being	
involved in orientation sessions	3
Community as well as college referral	
resources should be used Informal	
attempts to link up refugee students	
with appropriate agencies and	
volunteers on and off campuses should	
be encouraged	. 2
• • •	



Survey Area III Problems After Completion of Coursework or Program

Job search activities:

- intervlewing techniques need improvement
- Low speaking skills hinder communication
- Lack of understanding of employment procedures
- Facing of prejudiced employers
- Lack assertiveness in applying for jobs.

Need for additional education:

- Most do not continue further education at this time
- Continued language develoment is needed

Other needs:

- Need realistic approaches to career potential and possibilities
- Need more orientation to employers and employment prinedures
 • Follow-up studic should be carried out
- Need for more education for the community regarding acceptance of limited English speaking population

Suggested solutions:

- · Use the referral services of the Department of **Employment Security**
- Encourage the use of community sponsors for assistance
- Encourage career planning while in college courses
- Use the campus placement office and resources
- Have Special Services (U.S. Office of Education) programs on campuses that have immigrant and refugee students

Several comments regarding anticipated problems after educational experiences have taken place in community colleges:

- Identify the number of former students placed in employment positions as well as the number who are unable to find jobs because of their lack of basic skills, especially in English
- Have job placement and cross-cultural advising assistance on a permanent basis in the community colleges
- Recognize the impact on students' mental health and cultural adjustment
- Provide ongoing financial support and career awareness to promote continuing educational acityities.

Almost all the unmet and anticipated problems siem from the lack of funding. However, a short list of other concerns are. 1) child care assistance. 2) more support services providing individuals help with personal problems available in a flexible manner, and 3) Job placement and Job skills assessment.

The question is Where do funds come from? A closer cooperation between all servicing agencies would make more efficient use of available funds. Funding levels are currently inadequate, but higher levels of funding might be better administered by an umbrella organization that will offer comprehensive servicessuch as child care, mental health, job assessment and placement, and basic English skills assistance. The community college seems like the logical agency/ educational institution to provide this comprehensive scrvice.

Program Model

The following items are suggested as a model for the educational needs of limited English speaking students:

- Counseling and Advisement Services:
 - Assign a faculty member or counselor as the advocate for limited English speaking students.

Refer all students enrolling for the first time in classes beyond ESL to a testing/diagnostic program. Identify levels of proficiency needed for successful class performance. The diagnosis should review necessary speaking and listening skills.

- Continuity of Instructional Progression: Provide sequenced Classes so students do not encounter gans between ESL courses, between ESL and ABE courses, and between ABE and college preparatory courses.
- Support Services:

Provide class enrollment assistance

Provide a designated advocacy individual.

Provide tutoring assistance.

Provide job search assistance and planning.

- Program Exit or Completion:
 - Provide a follow-up with students to determine effectiveness of instruction and training. Contact should be made with employers as well as stu-

inform students of availability of further educational services.

Community Colleges with current immigrant and refugee programs that may provide other models or assistance are:

Everett Community College

Bilingual vocational ESL Training program in areas of: Welding, Food Technology and Chore Services.

Blg Bend Community College

Tutoring assistance through the Special Services **Federal program**

North Seattle Community College

English as a Second Language Pronunciation

Peer Tutoring program

Asian Club activities

Lower Columbia College

TRIO program for Disadvantaged students Educational Services peer helper program

"Rap Groups" for conversation assistance

Minority advisor-planned activities

Edmonds Community College

vocational ESL program for electronic technician students.



Recommendations

The following recommendations are presented for continuing the support for students with limited English abilities:

Recommendation 1:

Build a funding system that includes categorical funding for services and classes. Institutions that should receive funding based on proportionately larger population enrollments.

Recommendation 2:

A portion of community college funding should provide services and classes to assist the limited English proficient population to enter regular college classes. These services should include enhancing basic communication skills so students can enroll in college credit or certificated programs. Funding should also provide support services to these students during their training period and in next-step educational or employment planning.

Recommendation 3:

Increase the linkage with community organizations in order to develop a comprehensive services delivery system. This system should include assessment activities, child care support and counseling assistance for mental health problems. Joint community college/community agency operations will stretch both funding support and communication networks in each community for limited English proficient students.

Recommendation 4:

Encourage interdepartmental communication in each community college in order to clarify instructional standards for each training program and academic course. (North Seattle Community College has a model that may be used by other colleges.)

Recommendation 5:

Counseling assistance for limited English proficient students must be strengthened. Specially assigned counseiors should receive training regarding the needs of students, institutional policy should be established so referral routes are clear both for istructors and students requiring counseling assistance. Faculty advocates and counselors should be assigned to each immigrant and refugee student.

Recommendation 6:

A faculty advisory committee should be established for assisting with policy development, with college network systems, and with ethnic Community linkage



Section IV

Public Policy Recommendations



Section IV

Public Policy Recommendations

Public policy for basic skills education is necessary for determining directions and objectives for the 1980s.

This section presents eight public policy recommendations.



Public Policy For Basic Skills Education

Basic skills education has a high priority in Washing ton State community colleges. The instructional programs available provide students with the educational tools necessary to successfully complete their chosen academic or vocational/technical training and become contributing members in the community.

Three areas must be considered:

- the achievement of basic skills in reading, writing, mathematics, listening and speaking (for ESL students).
- 2 The achievement of competencies necessary for entry into academic or vocational programs, and
- 4 The assistance with ongoing skills support through tutoring and other educational services. All three areas enhance the prospect of success in course work by raising skills levels in verbal, mathematics, reasoning and study techniques.

In order to maintain quality and excellence, the following policies are recommended

Policy Litis recommended that each community college provide a comprehensive basic skills education curriculum through an identified program.

Rationale this generally accepted that up to 35% of the adult population is not educationally functional or employable in the current transforming society. High unemployment is predicted through the 1980s even though jobs will go untified. Many of these jobs will require high level competencies in technological fields. An aggressive basic skills program must be available through community colleges, must be accessible during times corresponding to adult schedules, must be comprehensive by design, and must have continuity from one level to the next. This program creates the link between limited or outdated skills for the educationally disadvantaged adult and new levels of competency which increase opportunities leading to employment.

Policy 2, It is recommended that assessment procedures be established in each community college ensuring students, instructors, counselors and advisors opportunities to identify basic learning skills.

Rationale A comprehensive, campuswide entrance and placement testing program is necessary for difficing students to appropriate basic skills resources such an initial assessment should include an evaluation of students' abilities in writing, reading, mathematics, listening and speaking (for ESL students) and study techniques.

Policy 3. It is recommended that selection of taculty and staff be given to candidates who demonstrate a commitment to basic skills education as an integral feature of teaching and learning in all disciplines. Support for this commitment comes from providing and encouraging continuous professional development at both the local and statewide levels.

Rationale An expert concerned faculty and staff is required if basic skills instruction is to be continuously successful. Rapid growth in curriculum and other areas, including computer technology, requires a net work for professional training and sharing. The Washington Association for Developmental Education has been organized to provide professional conferences and workshops.

Additionally, peer review programs aid improvement in curriculum and instruction, and special interest meetings and presentations provide opportunities for resources sharing. Together these inservice professional growth programs assist faculty and statfin upgrading their skills and understanding.

Policy 4. Because we are in a changing environment, it is recommended that an accountable system be established to ensure that program objectives are being met.

Rationale. Accountability is required in the delivery of basic skills education during the 1980s. Because change is a constant in educational planning, evaluation must lead to continuous modification of basic skills programs in response to demonstrated need it is recommended that no less than every four years a review be initiated in each college leading to program reduction or to appropriate support as times and conditions determine need.

Policy 5. It is recommended that communication exist between community colleges and local public school systems relating to basic skills competencies of students.

Rationale. There must be continuous collaboration with public school personnel relating to progress and improvement in basic skills competencies of students Reduction of learning deficiencies is the goal of educational systems in planning for a high technology society

Policy 6. It is recommended that basic skills programs and college support services collaborate in providing assistance to students enrolled in basic skills improvement courses.

Rationale There must be close ties with student ser vices support systems in each college. Counselor support for assistance in college entry assessment, crisis intervention, college/community referals, and fiext step educational or employment planning is essnential for students in basic skills program. This support gives recognition to both the cognitive and affective needs of students.

Policy 7, it is recommended that resources for Instruction, assessment and staff development in basic skills education be organized and managed through a system that ensures the best quality possible for instruction and programs.

Rationale High quality basic skills programs are dependent upon a system for sharing instructional resources. The continuation of the WADE BANK



instructional resources service for collection and dissemination of curriculum materials and other related items is essettial for providing all colleges with current knowledge relating to the basic skills program at a reasonable cost. The goal of the WADE BANK service is to ratse the quality of instruction in each college.

Secondly, the establishment of a grant program with \$25,000 annually for curriculum and program improvement is essential for enriching the instructional system and meeting the challenge of upgrading basic skills educational services. Small grants between \$200 and \$800 will allow each college several curriculum improvement projects to be developed each year.

Together these two programs will enable teaching activities to be improved and shared.

Policy 8 Formula funding should provide a staffing ratio no higher than 25:1 with the same mix of full and part time faculty as currently exists.

Rationale The 1982 student to faculty ratio in basic skills was 34.1 for the community college system. This

was a lise from a ratio of 29.1 in 1981. A recommended rate of 25.1 will provide educational assistance to the estimated 35% of adults who are function ally illiterate or illipropared to face a world requiring competencies in reading, writing and computational skills. In 1981 the State of Louisiana found this level of support to be necessary for a higher retention rate and a reduction in the impact of declining first-time enrollments. Included are costs associated with regular instruction and in support of counseling, advising and other next-step planning activities.

Last of all, this funding level should be reviewed biennially with the intention of reducing support as basic skills needs in our communities decline.

Conclusion

Public policy statements provide opportunity for shared and strategic visions for basic skills education to be aired Policy, once determined, becomes the structural framework necessary for program planning leading to implementation and evaluation. The objective is quality education for students.



Academic Competencies

As Defined By The College Board



Academic Competencies

As Defined By The College Board

(The Chronicle of Higher Education:/September 30, 1981)

Appendix



Academic Competencies As Defined By The College Board

(The Chronicle of Higher Education: September 30, 1981)

Following are the definitions of "academic competen cies" — abilities students need to do college work prepared in the first phase of the college Board's "Project Equality"

Reading Competencies

- The ability to identify and comprehend the main and subordinate ideas in a written work and to summarize the ideas of one's own words.
- The ability to recognize different purposes and methods of writing, to identify a writer's point of view and tone, and to interpret a writer's meaning, inferentially as well as literally
- The ability to separate one's personal opinions and assumptions from a writer's
- The ability to vary one sreading speed and method (survey, skim, review, question and master) according to the type of material and one s purpose for reading
- The ability to use the features of books and other reference materials, such as table of contents, pre-tace, introduction, titles and subtitles, index, glossary, approach and bibliography
- The ability to define untamiliar words by decoding, using contextual clues, or by using a dictionary

Writing Competencies

- The ability to conceive ideas about a topic for the purpose of writing
- The ability to organize, select and relate ideas and to outline and develop them in coherent paragraphs.
- The ability to write Standard English sentences with correct sentence structure, verb forms, punctuation, capitalization, possessives, plural forms and other matters of mechanics, word choice and spelling
- The ability to vary one's writing style, including vocabulary and sentence structure, for different readers and purposes.
- The ability to improve one's own writing by restructuring, correcting errors and rewriting.
- The ability to gather information from primary and secondary sources; to write a report using this research, accurately, and to cite sources properly

Speaking and Listening Competencies

- The ability to engage critically and constructively in the exchange of ideas, particularly during class discussions and conferences with instructors
- The ability to answer and ask questions coherently and concisely, and to follow spoken instructions.
- The ability to identify and comprehend the main and suboidinate ideas in fectures and discussions and to report accurately what others have said

- •The ability to conceive and develop ideas about a topic for the purpose of speaking to a group, to choose and organize related ideas, to present them clearly in Standard English, and to evaluate similar presentations by others.
- The ability to vary one's use of spoken language to suit different situations

Mathematical Competencies

- The ability to perform, with reasonable accuracy, the computations of addition, subtraction, multiplication and division using natural numbers, fractions, decimals and integers,
- The ability to use effectively the mathematics of, integers, fractions and decimals, ratios, proportions and percentages, roots and powers, algebra, geometry.
- The ability to make estimates and approximations, and to judge the reasonableness of a result.
- The ability to formulate and solve a problem in mathematical terms
- The ability to select and use appropriate ap proaches and tools in solving problems (mental computation, trial and error, paper and pencil techniques, calculator and computer.)
- The ability to use elementary concepts of probability and statistics.

Reasoning Competencies

- The ability to Identify and formulate problems as well as the ability to propose and evaluate ways to solve them.
- The ability to recognize and use inductive and deductive reasoning, and to recognize fallacies in reasoning
- The ability to draw reasonable conclusions from in formation found in various sources, whether written, spoken, tabular, or graphic, and to defend one's conclusions rationally.
- •The ability to comprehend, develop and use concepts and generalizations.
- The ability to distinguish between fact and opinion



51

Studying Competencies

This set of abilities is different in kind from those which precede it. They are set forth here because they constitute the key abilities in learning now to learn. Successful study skills are necessary for acquiring the other five competencies as well as for achieving the desired outcomes. Students are unlikely to be efficient in any part of their work without them.

One further difference must be expressed. Activities related to acquiring the basic studying competencies will fail unless students bear in mind the role of their attitude in the learning process. That attitude should encompass a sense of personal responsibility for one's own progress, a desire to make full use of the teacher as a resource and a willingness to conduct themselves in ways that make learning possible for their classmates as well as themselves.

•The ability to set study goals and priorities consistent with stated course objectives and one's own progress, to establish surroundings and habits conducive to learning independently or with others and to follow a schedule that accounts for both short and longterm projects.

 The ability to locate and use resources external to the classroom (for example, libraries, computers, interviews and direct observation) and to incorporate knowledge from such sources into the learning process.

The ability to develop and use general and specialized vocabularies, and to use them for reading, writing, speaking, listening, computing and studying.

The ability to understand and follow customary instructions for academic work in order to recall, comprehend, analyze, summarize and report the main ideas from reading, lectures and other academic experiences and synthesize knowledge and apply It to new situations.

The ability to prepare for various types of examinations and to devise strategies for pacing attempting or omitting questions, thinking, writing and editing according to the type of examination, to satisfy other assessments of learning in meeting course objectives such as laboratory performance, class participating, simulation and products of students' evaluation.

•The ability to accept constructive criticism and learn from it.

> JERICE © CLEARINGHOUSE FOR JUNIOR COLLEGES UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

> > FEB 1 7 1984

8118 Math-Sciences Building Los Angeles, California 90024

